
 
 

 
eastsussex.gov.uk 

LEAD MEMBER FOR RESOURCES AND CLIMATE CHANGE 
 
DECISIONS to be made by the Lead Member for Resources and Climate Change,  
Councillor Nick Bennett 
 
TUESDAY, 12 AUGUST 2025 AT 9.30 AM  
 
REMOTE MEETING VIA MICROSOFT TEAMS 
 
 
AGENDA 
 
1.   Decisions made by the Lead Cabinet Member on 8 July 2025  (Pages 3 - 4) 

 
2.   Disclosure of Interests   

Disclosure by all Members present of personal interests in matters on the agenda, the 
nature of any interest and whether the Members regard the interest as prejudicial under 
the terms of the Code of Conduct  
 

3.   Urgent items   
Notification of any items which the Lead Member considers urgent and proposes to take 
at the appropriate part of the agenda.  
 

4.   Fair Funding Review 2.0 Consultation Response  (Pages 5 - 24) 
Report by the Chief Finance Officer  
 

5.   Phoenix Centre, Lewes - Options for next steps  (Pages 25 - 28) 
Report by the Chief Operating Officer  
 

6.   Any urgent items previously notified under agenda item 3   
 

 
 
 
PHILIP BAKER 
Deputy Chief Executive   
County Hall, St Anne’s Crescent 
LEWES BN7 1UE 4 August 2025 
 
Contact Sophie Webb, Governance and Democracy Manager,  
01273 337495 
Email: sophie.webb@eastsussex.gov.uk  
 
NOTE: As part of the County Council’s drive to increase accessibility to its public meetings, this 
meeting will be broadcast live on its website. The live broadcast is accessible at: 
https://www.eastsussex.gov.uk/your-council/videos-of-council-meetings/webcasts 
 
 

https://www.eastsussex.gov.uk/your-council/videos-of-council-meetings/webcasts


This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

LEAD MEMBER FOR RESOURCES AND CLIMATE CHANGE 

 

DECISIONS made by the Lead Member for Resources and Climate Change, Councillor Nick 
Bennett, on 8 July 2025 at Remote Meeting via Microsoft Teams  

 

 

Councillors Maples, Swansborough and Wright spoke on item 4 (see minute 15) 

 

 

11. DECISIONS MADE BY THE LEAD CABINET MEMBER ON 10 JUNE 2025  

 

11.1 The Lead Member approved as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 10 
June 2025. 

 

12. DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS  

 

12.1 There were none. 

 

13. URGENT ITEMS  

 

13.1 There were none. 

 

14. REPORTS  

 

14.1 Reports referred to in the minutes below are contained in the minute book. 

 

 

 

Page 3

Agenda Item 1



 

 

 

 

15. COUNTY HALL SITE OPTIONS - UPDATE ON ASSET REVIEW  

 

15.1 The Lead Member considered a report by the Chief Operating Officer. 
 
DECISIONS 
 
15.2 The Lead Member RESOLVED to: 
 
1) Note the contents of the report; and 
 
2) Agree a further report will be presented in summer 2026 to reassess the options outlined in 
this report reflecting Local Government Reorganisation updates. 
 
REASONS 
 
15.3 The immediate actions outlined in the Lead Member report considered on 15 October 
2024 have been progressed, as detailed in the report. 
 
15.4 It is important the medium and long-term proposals for the County Hall site are fully 
aligned with Local Government Reorganisation considerations. All 6 local authorities in East 
Sussex are required to submit their final plan to Government in September 2025 and it is 
anticipated Government will make a decision in spring 2026 on the proposed unitary 
organisation. This will include the spatial geographical boundaries for a new unitary(s) and its 
roles and responsibilities linked to the proposed Mayoral function across West Sussex, East 
Sussex and Brighton & Hove.  
 
15.5 A new unitary authority will also need to consider its wider asset strategy, service needs 
and therefore future office and civic space which may impact on future options for County Hall 
campus as well as other office hubs from all 6 authorities in East Sussex. 
 
15.6 Given the impact of Sussex Devolution and Local Government Reorganisation on the 
long-term proposals for the County Hall site, a further report is presented to the Lead Member in 
summer 2026 to set out recommended next steps following Government’s decision in spring 
2026. 

 

 

Page 4



 

Report to: Lead Member for Resources and Climate Change 
 

Date of meeting: 
 

12 August 2025 

By: Chief Finance Officer  
 

Title: Fair Funding Review 2.0 Consultation Response 

 
Purpose: 

 
To provide an update on the impacts of the Fair Funding Review 2.0 
consultation and set out the Council’s proposed response. 

 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

The Lead Member for Resources and Climate Change is recommended to: 
 
(1) Approve the proposed consultation response; and 
 
(2) Delegate authority to the Chief Finance Officer to make any further minor amendments and to 
submit the final response by 15 August 2025. 
 

 

1. Background 

1.1 The government has issued its latest consultation paper on the funding reforms, known as the Fair 

Funding Review 2.0 (FFR2.0). It is an 8-week consultation, running from 20 June 2025 to 15 August 2025 

and respondents are asked to answer 46 questions on the range of proposals. The link to the consultation 

is found at: https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/the-fair-funding-review-20. 

1.2 The fair funding review has been a long time coming, with the current formula dating back to 

2013/14. The Council has lobbied for many years for the government to reform local government funding, 

so welcomes the simplification of the overall funding system, the plan for a multi-year settlement, and the 

fact that formulae to assess needs are being updated. However, the impact of the draft proposals in FFR2.0 

is expected to be detrimental to East Sussex County Council (ESCC), with a modelled loss of grant funding 

in the region of £18m by the end of the multi-year settlement to 2028/29.  

2. Supporting information 

Approach 

2.1 The FFR2.0 proposals cover 2 main aspects: an update of councils’ assessed needs, which 

includes an adjustment to reflect the differing ability of each council to raise council tax income; and a 

simplification of the overall funding system, with many specific grants rolled into the settlement. What the 

review does not provide is additional local government funding, but it will see the reallocation of existing 

funding.  

Updating Needs 

2.2 The government has updated the relative needs formulae (RNFs) used to assess each authority’s 

needs compared to all other authorities. The number of RNFs factors is proposed to be reduced from 15 

to 9. Each RNFs factor is derived using data on the potential drivers of activity and/or demand in each 

service. 

Page 5

Agenda Item 4

https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/the-fair-funding-review-20


2.3 An Area Cost Adjustment is applied to reflect the differing cost of providing services in different 

local authority areas. This is based on local wages, cost of accommodation and office space, and a 

remoteness adjustment. 

2.4 This is then weighted using expenditure control totals broadly derived from the total Revenue 

Outturn (RO) financial returns provided by all authorities, to ensure that services where expenditure has 

grown the fastest will have a larger share of needs. 

2.5 A resources adjustment is then applied to the Weighted Needs Shares to account for differing 

ability to raise Council Tax, rather than the rate that is actually charged in practice (this is explained further 

in paragraphs 2.16 to 2.18). The final Settlement Funding Allocation (SFA) comes together as below: 

 

 

 

 

  

Simplification of the Overall Funding System 

2.6 The government wants to simplify the overall funding system. It has identified around 300 specific 

grants that are paid to local authorities, from which it wants to create a series of consolidated grants. 

2.7 All the specific grants currently included within Core Spending Power (CSP) will be rolled into the 

SFA, including the New Homes Bonus, Recovery Grant, Minimum Funding Guarantee (MFG), the 3 social 

care grants, and the Children’s Social Care Prevention Grant.  

Impact – Updates to Assessed Needs 

2.8 The changes to the RNFs include:  

 Updated formulae for Adult Social Care and Children and Young People’s Services;  

 A new bespoke Home to School Transport formula; 

 An updated Highways Maintenance formula; 

 A new Temporary Accommodation formula; 

 The abolition of specific formulae related to environmental and cultural services, flood 

defence, coastal protection, and concessionary fares; 

 The specific formulae in the bullet point above to be replaced by 2 simplified foundation 

formulae (one for upper tier and one for lower tier authorities). 

2.9 Analysis of the needs assessments shows that there is going to be a considerable shift in needs 

away from inner London and from shire districts, and towards the shire counties and unitary authorities. 

This increase in the needs of shire counties results from the inclusion of the new Home to School Transport 

RNF, the new Highways formula, based on road length and traffic flow data, and the addition of an 

accessibility adjustment and a remoteness factor within the Area Cost Adjustment, to compensate 

authorities with less access to markets.  

2.10 Despite a projected increase in assessed needs of shire councils, there is likely to be significant 

variation between councils depending on local factors. 

2.11 For East Sussex, modelling suggests a small overall increase in need, with increases in the 

Children and Young People's RNF, due mainly to the inclusion of the Home to School Transport Service 

RNF, and an increase in Highways Maintenance due to changes in the way the formula is calculated,  

Settlement Funding 

Allocation (SFA) 

Resource 

Equalisation 

Needs  

Assessment 
= - 

Page 6



2.12 This will be partially offset by a fall in the assessed need for Adult Social Care due to a shift towards 

younger adults and away from older adults (e.g. the inclusion of a 16-24 years age group and a reduction 

in the weighting of over 65s) and a fall in the Foundation Formula has reduced due to the removal of 

specific flood defence and coastal protection formulae, with a simplified formula using daytime visitors and 

deprivation. 

Impact – Resource Equalisation 

2.13 While ESCC’s assessed need is projected to increase under the proposals, this does not mean 

that councils’ SFAs will be higher. As set out in paragraph 2.5, the government are proposing to apply a 

resource equalisation to each authority’s assessed needs to arrive at a final settlement figure.  

2.14 The government are proposing to move to full (100%) council tax equalisation. This is achieved by 

applying a notional council tax band D equivalent of £2,000 to each authority’s council tax base, deducting 

this from their total assessed needs (the product of its relative needs as a share of the quantum of local 

government core spending power) to arrive at a settlement funding allocation figure. The actual council 

tax levied and raised by each authority is not relevant to the calculation.  

2.15 By using this notional rate of £2,000 across all authorities, councils like ESCC, whose council tax 

base is relatively high compared to its assessed needs, will lose out after the deduction is applied. This 

can be explained using the example in Table 2 below.  

Table 1: Example of how SFA can differ between 2 authorities with the same assessed need but 

differing council tax bases 

 
Total 
Assessed 
Needs (£m) 

Council Tax Base 
(Band D 
equivalent) 

Notional 
Rate (£) 

Deduction 
(£m) 
 

SFA 
(£m) 

Council 1 (low base) 200 50,000 2,000 (100) 100 

Council 2 (high base) 200 75,000 2,000 (150) 50  
400 

  
(250) 150 

 

Net Gains and Losses - Modelled 

2.16 It is important to stress that the changes that have taken place to the system of local government 

funding since 2013/14 are numerous, varied and complex, so assessing the impact of the proposed 

reforms is very difficult, and any prediction must be viewed as a broad indicator rather than an exact figure. 

2.17  Nevertheless, supported by work undertaken by both our funding advisors and other local 

authorities, we have estimated the impacts of the reforms to be a net loss between £12m and £18m by 

2028/29, or 2% and 3% of the combined settlement and rolled in grants for 2025/26. There are transitional 

arrangements, set out in paragraph 2.19 below. 

2.18 Other gains or losses will be affected by the impact of the Business Rates reset, equalisation of 

the Adult Social Care (ASC) precept within the social care grants that are rolled into SFA, and other rolled 

in funding streams, such as the New Homes Bonus. 

Transitional support, phasing and keeping allocations up to date 

2.19 In response to authorities that lose funding, the government is proposing a package of transitional 

support, which will mean no authority suffering a cash-terms reduction in overall funding and transition will 

take place over the 3-year spending review period (2026-27 to 2028-29). A loss of £18m would, therefore, 

be phased at £6m per year. 

2.20 The government has also proposed to keep allocations up to date each year by using:  

Page 7



 Residential population (in the needs assessment); 

 Council Tax level (in the resource equalisation); and 

 Council Tax base growth (in the resource equalisation). 

 

3. Consultation Response 

3.1 While there are 46 questions in total, they can be grouped into various themes within the 

consultation and a summary of ESCC’s proposed responses are set out below. The full proposed 

responses to the 46 questions are set out in Appendix 1. 

Simplifying of funding landscape (Questions 1 – 6) 

3.2 ESCC broadly welcomes the simplification of the local government funding landscape and the end 

to competitive bidding. However, there is a concern that the rolling in of grants to the SFA will mean ESCC 

lose specific funding as it becomes subject to a SFA allocation that is less favourable.  

3.3 ESCC generally agrees that the new 9 formulae cover the main cost drivers, but have some 

reservations about how these are calculated, which are picked up later in the response. In particular, the 

inclusion of a Home to School Transport RNF is welcome and should move towards addressing key cost 

pressure in East Sussex. ESCC also welcomes the new Highways Formula. On the other hand, the loss 

of specific formulae related to Flood defence and Coastal Protection, to be replaced by simplified 

Foundation Formulae based on numbers of visitors and deprivation, is a concern to the Council.  

Area Cost Adjustment (Questions 7 – 9) 

3.4 The government are proposing to update the Area Cost Adjustment (ACA) to the Relative Needs 

Formulae to account for differences in the costs of delivering services. This comprises a Labour Cost 

Adjustment (LCA) to measure the difference in the cost of labour between local authorities, Rates Cost 

Adjustment (RCA) to measure the difference in the cost of property rates / rents between local authorities, 

an Accessibility Adjustment to account for the impact of the difference in travel time to provide services, 

and a Remoteness Adjustment to reflect the cost of separation from larger concentrations of service users. 

3.5 ESCC does not agree with the approach to ACA because a key aspect, the LCA, is flawed. The 

LCA is based on median wages as a proxy for the labour costs faced by the county. Median wages in East 

Sussex are approximately 90% of the national average, which will reduce ESCC’s relative needs share 

once the ACA is applied. 

3.6 However, the operational cost of social care is not aligned to local median wages, so ESCC’s 

assessed need is lower than the true cost of the fees paid to providers to support adults and children with 

social care needs. The Council would urge the government to use a more sophisticated approach to the 

labour cost adjustment based on industry sector wages – in particular health and social care sector in the 

ASC and Children and Young People’s RNFs.  

3.7 However, ESCC agrees with the inclusion of the Remoteness Adjustment. For example, published 

hourly homecare rates in the most rural areas of ESCC are 49.8% higher than the lowest rate in the County 

at £35.96 per hour compared to £24.00 per hour. 

Resources Equalisation (Questions 10 – 16) 

3.8 ESCC believes that a 100% equalisation is grossly unfair. ESCC would strongly favour a partial 

equalisation – for example 85%. Opting for an 85% equalisation, as had been proposed and lobbied for 

by The Society of County Treasurers during the initial consultation, would reduce impact of the resources 

equalisation and leave councils with a high tax base relative to their needs (such as ESCC) with a higher 

SFA. 

 

Page 8



3.9 100% equalisation means many authorities, including ESCC, will see their overall settlements 

reduce significantly (assuming overall core spending power increases in line with the Spending Review), 

despite recognition of increased need. This is destabilising to the system, will risk the financial 

sustainability of affected authorities, and impact services provided to residents.  

 

3.10 The council tax base should also be adjusted to reflect council tax collection rates. The assumption 

that these are 100% does not reflect reality and means the resources deduction will be far greater than 

the amount of council tax that could realistically be collected at the notional rate. 

 

3.11 ESCC would also urge that the government to recognise that council tax is a local tax. Residents 

expect their council tax to be spent locally, and recognition that it is a local tax is required to maintain trust 

between residents and local authorities. The current system is already complicated, and excessive 

equalisation just makes the connection between the council tax they pay and the level of local services 

even more opaque and harder for residents to understand.  

 

3.12 If council tax equalisation is to be at 100%, based on a council’s tax base, then councils should be 

given greater flexibility on setting council tax otherwise the argument that areas with a high base are more 

able to mitigate the loss of grant funding is completely undermined. 

 

Transitional Arrangements, Phasing and Keeping Allocations Up to Date (Questions 20 – 27)  

3.13 ESCC welcomes the multi-year settlement and broadly agrees with transitional arrangements and 

a funding floor to protect the impact on authorities who will see reductions in the SFA. 

3.14 While ESCC generally agrees with keeping allocations up to date to reflect changes in need, this 

must be balanced against the desire for certainty of funding allocations to help strategic financial planning. 

The government could consider a stepped approach when material changes (e.g. over 10%) are seen in 

areas. Also, flat population growth figures are not reflective of need in areas such as East Sussex, where 

growth in the older population (and a reduction in the working age population) has resulted, and will 

continue to result, in increased need that would not be reflected in future allocations based on total 

population figures. ESCC would prefer an age-related population growth factor to be used. 

3.15 ESCC strongly disagrees with projecting changes to the council tax rate to inform the resources 

adjustment over the settlement period. Council tax rates are a local decision, and residents do not expect 

this to affect government funding levels. If future funding is impacted based on an assumed rate of council 

tax (whether that be the referendum principles or historic decisions), this will undermine future decisions 

on council tax and removes any link between the amount of tax paid by residents and the services they 

receive.  

3.16 Regarding the growth in the council tax base and updating the resource equalisation, while there 

is a logic in reflecting the growth in the base, using historic growth figures creates an inherent inaccuracy 

in the base, and exaggerates the impact of a 100% equalisation, which ESCC is strongly opposed to.  

Sales, fees and charges reform (Questions 31 – 34) 

3.17 The government is seeking views on how changes to fees and charges could be taken forward in 

a proportionate way across the multi-year Settlement.  

3.18 ESCC would support any move to increase flexibility for raising fees and charges and would urge 

the government to progress with any review that prioritises increasing flexibility and trusting local 

authorities to set the right fee levels that recognise effects on demand, businesses and financial 

sustainability, to ease the financial strain on local government. Local authorities are best placed to know 

how to balance the need to maintain fee values and the original policy intent of the fee whilst minimising 

cost of living impacts for service users, so emphasis should be on devolving decision-making to local 

Page 9



authorities as much as possible – for example, by allowing means testing of Home to School Transport 

and Concessionary Fares. 

Technical Questions on Individual RNF (Questions 35 – 45) 

3.19 Councils have been asked to comment on the factors used in the calculation of individual formulae. 

This is a detailed and complicated part of the consultation, so below is a summary of the issues or concerns 

ESCC has with aspects of the RNFs. 

Adult Social Care RNF 

3.20 ESCC feels strongly that the disproportionate cost of supporting the very old population (i.e. over 

85s) has not been taken account of in the ASC RNF. ESCC has the largest number of over 85s in the 

country, and one of the oldest populations in the UK, and the corresponding rate of dementia and other 

chronic health conditions inevitably has a drastic impact on the cost of care to meet the statutory Care Act 

duties, and yet the ESCC assessed need for ASC has dropped by 3.4%.  

3.21 A suggested addition to the formula would be the incorporation of average population age as a 

factor. Whilst this is somewhat incorporated in both the older adult and younger adult RNF calculations by 

the adjustments for over 80 years of age (an increase) and for the age group 16-24 (a decrease) it does 

not reflect that having a consistently older population impacts on the complexity of both population splits, 

particularly the amount of family support available for the older working age population and the complexity 

of care required for a generally older population.  

Foundation RNF 

3.22 It is noted that deprivation is now included as a factor in the foundation formula, which is consistent 

with the government’s targeting of deprivation. As East Sussex is in the least deprived third of LAs in the 

country, this has been detrimental to ESCC, who has seen its foundation formulae needs assessment drop 

by 3.3%. However, other factors related to deprivation have been applied to other areas of the formulae – 

notably the use of median wages for the Area Cost Adjustment, where ESCC’s lower wages will have 

reduced ESCC’s assessed needs. A more consistent approach to deprivation and local wages would have 

been fairer and avoided ESCC losing out twice.   

3.23 The removal of specific formulae related to flood defence and coastal protection is also detrimental 

to ESCC and would prefer these cost drivers to be captured in some way in the new Foundation RNF.  

Highways RNF 

3.24 ESCC broadly agrees with the simplified approach to the Highways RNF, with some caveats. The 

key limitation of this approach is that it assumes that historic spend across local authorities is broadly 

proportional to historic need. It does not account for current road conditions, the conditions of other assets 

such as bridges or the backlog of repairs across the country. 

Home to School Transport RNF 

3.25 While the addition of a specific Home to School Transport RNF is welcome, ESCC does not agree 

with its calculation. The 20-mile capping risks underfunding authorities like ESCC where long-distance 

travel is often a necessity rather than choice, with around 10% of journeys over 20 miles. These longer 

journeys are often the most expensive, supporting Alternative Provision and Education Otherwise than at 

School. ESCC would prefer a tiered weighting system that reflects the cost of longer journeys, rather than 

excluding them from the calculation. 

3.26  The straight road formula discounts ESCC’s rural roads and appears quite reductive for a big 

county. It doesn’t reflect the reality of ESCC’s transport networks and East Sussex has limited direct routes, 

especially to special schools. ESCC would prefer to use actual road distances or a weighted proxy that 

accounts for rurality and/or travel time. 

Page 10



3.27  ESCC does not know how the figure of Special Educational Need and Disability (SEND) travel 

costing 6.6 times more than mainstream travel was arrived at, nor whether it accounts for regional 

variation. If ESCC includes public transport (freedom passes) in its costs, the difference is greater than 6.6 

times the cost. This will understate the complexity of provision especially for children who need medical 

support on transport. There should be consideration of rurality, need for children who travel on their own, 

personal assistants or nurses, specialist vehicles, and longer travel times. 

4. Conclusion and reasons for recommendations 

4.1 The Council has considered the government’s proposed funding reforms, which are likely to mean 

a loss of settlement funding for 2026/27. While aspects of the reforms are welcome, ESCC has concerns 

with some of the proposals and how this will impact the Council’s financial position over the settlement 

period. ESCC hopes that the response, together with those of other authorities within the Council’s 

networks, will be reflected in the government’s policy statement and final settlement due before the end of 

2025. 

4.2 The proposed response set out at Appendix 1 is in draft format. Further work continues in 

consultation with other local authorities and network bodies.  

4.3 The Lead Member for Resources and Climate Change is therefore recommended to: 

 Approve the proposed consultation response; and   

 Delegate authority to the Chief Finance Officer to make any further minor amendments and 

to submit the final response by 15 August 2025 

 

IAN GUTSELL 
Chief Finance Officer 

Contact Officer: Thomas Alty 
Tel. No. 07701 394836 
Email: Thomas.Alty@eastsussex.gov.uk  

 

Background Documents: 

None 

Local Members: 

All 

Page 11

mailto:Thomas.Alty@eastsussex.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

ESCC Proposed FFR2.0 Consultation Response (Draft) 

Question 1 

What are your views on the updated SFA resulting in zero allocations, and the use of mitigations to 

avoid zero allocations? 

Given that the sector is significantly overspending, then a zero allocation suggests either the 

formulae are not reflective of needs, or the total core spending power is way below the true needs 

of local government. Nevertheless, ESCC agrees that mitigations be used to avoid zero 

allocations. 

Question 2 

Do you agree with how the government proposes to determine the Isles of Scilly’s Settlement 

Funding Assessment? 

Yes 

Question 3 

Do you agree with the government’s plans to simplify the grant landscape? 

We welcome the end to competitive bidding and a simplification of grant funding. We agree that 

the government should be looking to reduce the number of specific grants. However, the needs 

related to these grants must be reflected in a fair settlement to avoid authorities losing funding and 

receiving settlement that is less than the needs they face in these areas.  

Question 4 

Do you agree with the formulae for individual services the government proposes to include? 

ESCC agrees that the new RNF cover the main cost drivers. However, we have concerns about 

how the formulae have been calculated, which is reflected in our responses later in this 

consultation. 

Question 5 

Do you agree with the areas of need the government proposes to no longer include in the 

assessment through the Foundation Formula? 

ESCC agrees with the removal of legacy capital finance from the formulae. Through a sound 

treasury management strategy, we have refinanced to reduce the impact of legacy borrowing and 

do not believe this should be reflected in a council’s assessed needs. ESCC agrees that fixed 

costs can be removed, providing that the RNF adequately reflect the fixed costs of providing 

services.   

Question 6 

Do you agree with the government’s approach to calculating the control total shares for the relative 

needs formulae? 

ESCC agrees that using expenditure is a reasonable approach to calculating control total shares. 

 

 

Page 13

Appendix 1



 

 

Question 7 

Do you agree with the Labour Cost Adjustment (LCA) and Rates Cost Adjustment (RCA) 

equations set out in this chapter? 

ESCC does not agree with how the Labour Cost Adjustment (LCA) has been calculated. The LCA 

is based on median wages as a proxy for the labour costs faced by the county. As median wages 

in East Sussex are approximately 90% of the national average, and the LCA is heavily weighted in 

the ACA (67% of both the ASC and the Children and Young People’s RNFs), ESCC’s assessed 

need have been markedly reduced. 

The operational cost of social care is not aligned to local median wages, so our assessed need is 

lower than the true cost of the fees we pay to our providers to support adults and children with 

social care needs. We would urge the government to use a more sophisticated approach to the 

labour cost adjustment based on industry sector wages – in particular health and social care 

sector in the ASC and Children and Young Peoples RNFs.  

Question 8 

What are your views on the proposed approach to the Area Cost Adjustment? 

As with the previous question, we do not agree with the approach to calculating the LCA using 

local median wages as a proxy for the labour costs faced by ESCC. However, the principle of 

including labour costs, rates, remoteness, and the approach to weighting are reasonable. 

Question 9 

Do you agree or disagree with the inclusion of the Remoteness Adjustment? Do you have any 

evidence to support or contradict the theory that rural areas face additional costs due to separation 

from major markets? 

ESCC agrees with the Remoteness Adjustment.  

In recent years, ESCC has struggled to either attract bidders to tenders, or experienced poor 

performance once contracted, in a number of service areas due to rurality and remoteness. This 

includes maintenance contracts, mental health support services, sexual health services and bus 

services. 

This impacts on service cost. For example, published hourly homecare rates in the most rural 

areas of ESCC are 49.8% higher than the lowest rate in the County – at £35.96 per hour 

compared to £24.00 per hour. 

Question 10 

Do you agree with the government’s proposal to set a notional Council Tax level at the national 

average level, to achieve the objective of full equalisation? 

ESCC believes that a 100% equalisation is grossly unfair.  ESCC would strongly favour a partial 

equalisation – for example 85%. 100% equalisation means many authorities, including ESCC, will 

see their overall settlements reduce significantly (assuming overall core spending power increases 

in line with the CSR), despite recognition of increased need. This is destabilising to the system, 

will risk the financial sustainability of affected authorities, and impact services provided to 

residents. To be removing funding for councils that are heavily overspending and rapidly running 

out of reserves is absurd, only intensifying the idea that these reforms represent a ‘shifting of the 

deckchairs’ rather than a fair and just solution to the system of funding in local government.  

Page 14



 

 

 

Alternatively, the council tax base should be adjusted to reflect council tax collection rates. The 

assumption that these are 100% does not reflect reality and means the resources deduction will 

be far greater than the amount of council tax that could realistically be collected at the notional 

rate. An assumed collection rate of 95% would balance reality with incentivising councils to 

maximise collection.  

 

ESCC would urge that the government recognises that council tax is a local tax.  Excessive 

equalisation undermines the connection between locally raised council tax, and locally funded 

services.  Residents expect their council tax to be spent locally and recognition it is a local tax is 

required to maintain trust between residents and local authorities.  

 

If council tax equalisation is to be at 100%, based on a council’s tax base, then councils should be 

given greater flexibility on setting council tax otherwise the argument that areas with a high base 

are more able to mitigate the loss of grant funding is completely undermined.  

 

Question 11 

Do you agree with the government’s proposal to fully include the impact of mandatory discounts 

and exemptions in the measure of taxbase? 

ESCC agrees with the proposal to fully include these discounts. As local authorises have no 

influence or control over them, it is correct they are included within the measure of tax base. 

Question 12 

Do you agree with the government’s proposal to use statistical methods to proxy for the impact of 

Working Age Local Council Tax Support in the measure of taxbase? 

Given the vast differences in schemes across the country, ESCC agrees that a proxy is the 

preferred method. 

Question 13 

What are your views on the proposed statistical approach to proxy for the impact of Working Age 

Local Council Tax Support? 

ESCC are working through the implication of this. 

Question 14 

Do you agree with the government’s proposal to assume that authorities make no use of their 

discretionary discount and premium schemes in the measure of taxbase? 

ESCC are working through the implication of this. 

Question 15 

Do you agree with the government’s proposal to apply a uniform Council Tax collection rate 

assumption to all authorities? 

ESCC do not agree with this. It is unrealistic to assume 100% collection and means that council’s 

such as ESCC will lose even more from the resources deduction than can realistically be 

collected. It would be simpler and fairer to apply the national average of 95%, in the same way that 

the national average has been proposed for Council Tax level.  

Page 15



 

 

 

 

 

Question 16 

Do you agree with the government’s proposal to split or allocate the resource adjustment in multi-

tier areas according to the average share in Council Tax receipts in multi-tier areas? 

This approach is reasonable 

Question 17 

Noting a potential trade-off of an increased levy charged on business rate growth for some local 

authorities, do you agree that the level of Safety Net protection should increase for 2026-27? 

Agree 

Question 18 

Do you agree with the government’s proposal to end the New Homes Bonus in the Settlement 

from 2026-27 and return the funding currently allocated to the Bonus to the core Settlement, 

distributed via the updated Settlement Funding Assessment? 

ESCC agrees with the principal of allocating NHB within the settlement. However, as with other 

grants rolled into the settlement, this is predicated on the SFA being correct. 

Question 19 

What measures could the government use to incentivise local authorities to specifically support 

affordable and sub-market housing? 

Not implement 100% council tax equalisation. 

Question 20 

Are there any further flexibilities that you think could support local decision-making during the 

transitional period? 

Given the government is committed to simplifying the grant landscape consideration could be 

given to the un-ringfencing of ring-fenced grants.  

Question 21 

What are the safeguards that would need to go alongside any additional flexibilities? 

N/A 

Question 22 

Do you agree or disagree that we should move local authorities to their updated allocations over 

the multi-year Settlement? 

While ESCC agrees with moving authorities over a transition period, we are concerned with the 

level of settlement that we will lose over the 3-year period. Where an authorities updated 

allocations will be lower, it may be preferable to limit annual reductions (e.g. 1% of CT base for 

example) to protect services and manage financial instability. This would mean some authorities 

reach their updated allocations sooner than others. 

 

Page 16



 

 

Please provide any additional information, including the impact this measure could have on local 

authorities’ financial sustainability and service provision. 

Question 23 

Do you agree or disagree that we should use a funding floor to protect as many local authorities’ 

income as possible, at flat cash in each year of the Settlement? 

Agree 

 

Please provide any additional information, including on: 

- The level of protection or income baseline, considerate of the trade-off with allocating funding 

according to the updated assessment of need and resources; and 

- The possible impacts on local authorities’ financial sustainability and service provision. 

Question 24 

Do you agree or disagree with including projections on residential population? 

While ESCC generally agrees with keeping allocations up to date to reflect changes in need, this 

must be balanced against the desire for certainty of funding allocations to help strategic financial 

planning. The government could consider a stepped approach when material changes (e.g. over 

10%) are seen in areas. Also, flat population growth figures are not reflective of need in areas 

such as East Sussex, where growth in the older population (and a reduction in the working age 

population) has resulted, and will continue to result, in increased need that would not be reflected 

in future allocations based on total population figures. ESCC would prefer an age-related 

population growth factor to be used. 

Question 25 

Do you agree or disagree with including projections on Council Tax level? 

ESCC disagrees with projecting changes to the council tax rate to inform the resources adjustment 

over the settlement period. The council tax level assumes how much Council tax rates will be 

raised, which is a local decision. Residents do not expect this to affect government funding levels. 

If future funding is impacted based on an assumed rate of council tax (whether that be the 

referendum principals or historic decisions) then this will undermine future decisions on council tax 

and removes any link between the amount of tax paid by residents and the services that they 

receive. 

Question 26 

Do you agree or disagree with including projections on Council Tax base? 

ESCC agrees that, while there is a logic in reflecting the growth in the base, this will exaggerate 

the impact of a 100% equalisation, which ESCC is strongly opposed to. ESCC would also suggest 

that factoring council tax base growth in future allocations could disincentivise housebuilding. 

Question 27 

If you agree, what is your preferred method of projecting residential population, Council Tax level 

and Council Tax base? Please provide any additional information, including any explanation or 

evidence for your response and any views on technical delivery 

N/A 

 

Page 17



 

 

 

Question 28 

Do you agree with the proposed above approach to determining allocations for areas which 

reorganise into a single unitary authority along existing geographic boundaries? 

Agree 

Question 29 

Do you agree that, where areas are reorganising into multiple new unitary authorities, they should 

agree a proposal for the division of existing funding locally, based on any guidance set out by 

central government? 

 

ESCC does not have a strong view on the proposal to allow existing LA areas that are splitting into 

more than one authority to determine their own allocations. However, any future funding formula 

should be fair and consistent, with new areas having their own formal needs assessment.  

Please provide any supporting information, including any further information areas would find 

helpful in guidance. 

 

Question 30 

Do you agree that the government should work to reduce unnecessary or disproportionate burden 

created by statutory duties? If you agree, what specific areas of statutory duties impose significant 

burden without significant value for residents? 

ESCC would agree that the government should work to reduce unnecessary or disproportionate 

burden created by statutory duties.  

Please provide any examples of changes you would like to see to statutory duties, being as 

specific as possible. 

 Reduced range of statutory functions undertaken by Qualified Social Workers 

 Funding statutory Special Educational Needs Team and Educational Psychologists from 

Dedicated Schools Grant 

 Introduce means tested charging for home to school transport 

 Children’s services commissioning: capping profit margins for providers of children’s 

homes, national consistency in approach to placement fees, introduction of post-16 

regulations and regionalised commissioning 

 Charging for use of Household Waste Recycling Centres  

 Charging for concessionary fares and issuing bus passes  

 Enforcement for Pavement (footway) parking 

 

Question 31 

Do you agree with the proposed framework outlined at paragraph 11.2.3 for assessing whether a 

fee should be changed? 

ESCC would urge the government to increase flexibility for raising fees and charges. ESCC 

understand that there are certain constraints and the framework the government has set out 

seems reasonable. However, ESCC would want the review to prioritise increasing flexibility and 

Page 18



 

 

trusting local authorities to set the right fee levels that recognise effects on demand, businesses 

and financial sustainability, to ease the financial strain on local government. Local authorities are 

best placed to know how to balance the need to maintain fee values and the original policy intent 

of the fee whilst minimising cost of living impacts for service users, so emphasis should be on 

devolving decision to local authorities as much as possible.  

Please provide any additional information, for example any additional considerations which would 

strengthen this proposed assessment framework, and any data which would be used to assess 

against it. 

Question 32 

The government invites views from respondents on how best to balance the need to maintain fee 

values and the original policy intent of the fee whilst minimising cost of living impacts for service 

users. 

ESCC would support any move to increase flexibility for raising fees and charges and would urge 

the government to progress with any review that prioritises increasing flexibility and trusting local 

authorities to set the right fee levels that recognise effects on demand, businesses and financial 

sustainability, to ease the financial strain on local government. Local authorities are best placed to 

know how to balance the need to maintain fee values and the original policy intent of the fee whilst 

minimising cost of living impacts for service users, so emphasis should be on devolving decision to 

local authorities as much as possible – for example, by allowing means testing of Home to School 

Transport and Concessionary Fares. 

Question 33 

Do you agree that the measures above provide an effective balance between protecting charge 

payers from excessive increases, while providing authorities with greater control over local 

revenue raising? 

ESCC believes the measures are reasonable. 

 

Please provide a rationale for your response. We are also interested in any further mechanisms 

which could be applied to fees that are updated or devolved, that will help strike a balance 

between those objectives. 

Question 34 

Do you agree that we should take action to update fees before exploring options to devolve certain 

fees to local government in the longer term? 

ESCC does not have a strong view but would again stress the need to move towards a more 

flexible system. 

Question 35 

Do you agree or disagree that these are the right relative needs indicators? Are there any other 

Relative Needs Indicators we should consider? Note that we will not be able to add additional 

indicators for a 2026-27 update. 

Agree 

 

 

Page 19



 

 

Technical Questions: 

Question 36 

Do you agree or disagree with including population projections in the ASC formula, when 

published, that have been rebased using Census 2021 data? 

We agree with the principle that adjustments should be based on up-to-date information about the 

population, and that the size and demographics of the population are relevant to the share of 

funding a local authority receives. We agree with using Census 2021 data for this purpose. 

Question 37 

Do you agree or disagree with our proposal to include a Low Income Adjustment (LIA) for the older 

adults component of the ASC RNF model? 

Theoretically, a low-income adjustment to recognise the ability of the population to contribute to 

their own care is reasonable, and it is recognised that this was first introduced in the 2011 to 2012 

LGFS2. However, it is of concern that the government notes ‘that the statistical evidence for this 

relationship is weak’ with regards to the use of benefits data. On balance, it may be better to 

exclude such a measure given that the wealth of the population is already considered within the 

ACA for adult social care in relation to PIP, DLA and Attendance Allowance, as well as home 

ownership, all of which may correlate with the capacity for charging and collection. It is also noted 

that this would have minimal effect on the overall outcome of the allocations (paragraph 12.1.27 of 

section 2 https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/the-fair-funding-review-20) hence it would 

be genuinely within the spirit of simplification to remove this adjustment. Therefore, we disagree 

with the inclusion of the LIA within the ASC RNF model. 

Question 38 

Do you agree or disagree that the overall ASC RNF should combine the two component allocation 

shares using weights derived from the national ASC net current expenditure data on younger and 

older adults (in this case 2023 to 2024)? 

If you disagree, what other weightings would you use? Please provide details for why you would 

use these weights and what data it would be based on? 

Agree that the overall ASC RNF should combine the two component allocation shares using the 

2023-24 net current expenditure on younger and older adults, a split which should be regularly 

updated to avoid a drastic shift as this will trigger by updating from 2013-14 data.  

However, we feel strongly that the disproportionate cost of supporting the very old population (i.e. 

over 85s) has not been taken account of in the ASC RNF. For ESCC, we have the largest number 

of over 85s in the country, East Sussex has one of the oldest populations in the UK and the 

corresponding rate of dementia and other chronic health conditions inevitably has a drastic impact 

on the cost of care to meet the statutory Care Act duties, and yet our assessed need for ASC has 

dropped by 3.4%.  

A suggested addition to the formula would be the incorporation of average population age as a 

factor. Whilst this is somewhat incorporated in both the older adult and younger adult RNF 

calculations by the adjustments for over 80 years of age (an increase) and for the age group 16-24 

(a decrease) it does not reflect that having a consistently older population impacts on the 

complexity of both population splits, particularly the amount of family support available for the 

older working age population and the complexity of care required for a generally older population.  

Page 20

https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/the-fair-funding-review-20


 

 

Question 39 

Do you agree that ethnicity should be removed as a variable in the CYPS formula? Please explain 

your reasoning. 

Agree 

Question 40 

Do you agree overall that the new formula represents an accurate assessment of need for children 

and family services? Please share any reflections or suggested changes. 

The key indicators of spend for ESCC are deprivation and rurality. Rurality has an impact on the 

supply of services across a wider area. We are not clear that the factor “travel time to town centre” 

a proxy for rurality now what does the government consider a town. 

Question 41 

Do you believe that the components of daytime population inflow should be weighted to reflect 

their relative impact on demand for services? 

The components of daytime population inflow should be weighted to reflect their impact on service 

demand; however, further details on the proposed system of weighting are needed to make 

informed comments on this. 

Question 42 

Do you agree with/have any comments on the design of the Foundation Formula? 

It is noted that deprivation is now included as a factor in the foundation formula, which is 

consistent with the government’s targeting of deprivation. As East Sussex is in the least deprived 

third of LAs in the country, this has been detrimental to ESCC, who have seen our foundation 

formulae needs assessment drop by 3.3%. However, other factors linked to deprivation have been 

applied to other areas of the formulae – notable the use of median wages for the Area Cost 

Adjustment, where ESCC’s lower wages will have reduced ESCC’s assessed needs.  

The removal of specific formulae related to flood defence and coastal protection is also detrimental 

to councils such as ESCC and we would prefer these cost drivers to be captured in some way in 

the new Foundation RNF. 

Question 43 

Do you agree with/have any comments on the design of the Fire and Rescue Formula? 

N/A 

Question 44 

Do you agree with/have any comments on the design of the formula for Highways Maintenance? 

ESCC broadly agrees with the simplified approach, with some caveats. The key limitation of this 

approach is that it assumes that historic spend across local authorities is broadly proportional to 

historic need. It does not account for current road conditions, the conditions of other assets such 

as bridges or the backlog of repairs across the country (Annual Local Authority Road Maintenance 

(ALARM) survey - AIA The Asphalt Industry Alliance). While there are not routinely published data 

sources to cover all these elements DfT has previously undertaken one-off data collections to 

gather information for the allocation of funding, and it is difficult to see how funding can be 

appropriately allocated without this. 

Page 21



 

 

Government is proposing to investigate the impact of incorporating climate or weather data at local 

authority level within the formula. However, they should also look to factor in the engineering 

geology of an area. Geological and environmental factors were recommended for consideration by 

DfT in the National Audit Office’s report ‘The condition and maintenance of local roads in England’ 

(paragraph 2.9 page 31). 

Question 45 

Do you agree with/have any comments on the design of the formula for Home-to-School-

Transport? 

While the addition of a specific Home to School Transport RNF is welcome, ESCC does not agree 

with its calculation. The 20-mile capping risks underfunding authorities like ESCC where long-

distance travel is often necessity rather than choice, with around 10% of journeys over 20 miles. 

These longer journeys are often our most expensive, supporting Alternative Provision and 

Education Otherwise than at School. ESCC would prefer a tiered weighting system that reflects 

the cost of longer journeys, rather than excluding them from the calculation. 

The straight road formula discounts ESCC’s rural roads and appears quite reductive for a big 

county. It doesn’t reflect the reality of our transport networks and East Sussex has limited direct 

routes, especially to special schools. ESCC would prefer to use actual road distances or a 

weighted proxy that accounts for rurality/travel time. 

ESCC does not know how the figure of SEND travel costing 6.6 times more than mainstream 

travel was arrived at, nor whether it accounts for regional variation. If ESCC includes public 

transport (freedom passes) in its costs, the difference is greater than 6.6. This will understate the 

complexity of provision especially for children who need medical support on transport. There 

should be consideration of rurality, need for solos, personal assistants or nurses, specialist 

vehicles, and longer travel times. 

Question 46 

Do you have any views on the potential impacts of the proposals in this consultation on persons 

who share a protected characteristic? 

Local government provides some of the most vital frontline public services to many of the most 

vulnerable people in society, including many whose needs are linked to or arise from their legally 

protected characteristics under the Equality Act 2010. Children's and adults’ services and social 

care, public health, libraries, transport, the economy and a host of other provision are critical 

services that must respond efficiently and effectively to that diverse range of needs. Other more 

structural indicators, such as levels of deprivation, quality of housing stock, access to transport 

and socio-economic disadvantage, must also be considered at local level to enable effective 

interventions. 

Responses to day-to-day, one-off and crisis needs must be based on a wide range of up-to-date 

local population data, recognising that in relation to people sharing some characteristics statistical 

data is often limited. Residents are highly diverse in their needs, assets and circumstances and in 

a county like East Sussex there are additional significant differences between and within 

geographical areas. People sharing some characteristics, such as younger and older people, 

women, and disabled people, are far more likely to be regularly reliant on local public services. 

Equally, the needs of groups who are ‘seldom heard’ and/or under-represented in engagement – 

Page 22



 

 

such as children and young people, ethnic minority residents, people experiencing 

domestic/sexual violence, people receiving benefits – must be specifically factored into 

consideration as their experiences and perspectives may be even less frequently identified and 

understood. 

Changes to councils’ funding can lead to significant redistribution or reduction of resources, 

reshaping of services, shifting of eligibility criteria, and important changes to people's access to 

services and opportunities. Changes of this type in social services, healthcare or education have 

clearly evidenced disproportionate impacts on disabled people, older people, children and young 

people, women and people from some ethnic minority backgrounds. In addition, people who are 

LGBTQIA, unpaid carers, experiencing sexual or domestic violence, and/or experiencing 

socioeconomic disadvantage are often under-identified or not recognised in services, but likely to 

be affected in similar negative ways by reductions. Changes to funding models for local authorities 

may also lead to cuts in more universal services that have an important role in improving 

community cohesion and social inclusion, and in addressing loneliness, such as library services, 

subsidised transport and support to the VCSE. 

To ensure fair and equitable outcomes of the funding review, ongoing assessment of equality 

impacts will be vital, including engagement with stakeholders to identify potential issues, 

particularly where data relating to people sharing specific protected characteristics is limited. 

Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank



  
Report to:  Lead Member for Resources and Climate Change 

  

Date of meeting:  

  

12 August 2025  

By:  Chief Operating Officer   

  

Title:  Phoenix Centre, Lewes – Options for next steps 

  

Purpose:  To seek a declaration that the property is surplus to the operational 

requirements of the Council and to seek agreement to let the asset 

in accordance with s123 of the Local Government Act 1972.  

 
RECOMMENDATIONS  

The Lead Member for Resources and Climate Change is recommended to:  

1) Declare the Phoenix Centre, Lewes (the Property) to be surplus to the Council’s 
requirements; and 
 

2) Agree that the Property be let in accordance with s123 of the Local Government 
Act 1972. 

 

 

1  Background  

1.1 Following a public consultation from 3 October 2024 to 28 November 2024, Cabinet 
approved the closure of the Phoenix Centre Day Service for older people with physical and 
mental health needs on 25 February 2025 - Decision - Proposal to close the Phoenix Centre 
Day Service for older people | East Sussex County Council. The service has since ceased 
operating from the Property and the East Sussex County Council (the Council) has supported 
the adults with accessing alternative services in the community. 
 
1.2 The Property, known as the Phoenix Centre, is identified in Appendix 1. It comprises 
a single storey building that was constructed in the 1980s. It has a central courtyard and a 
parking area. The Property is well located in Lewes, with access off Phoenix Causeway / 
Malling Street. It is adjacent to Phoenix Causeway Car Park, which is owned by Lewes 
District Council.  
 
1.3 Following the vacation of the Day Service, an alternative operational use was 
considered for the Property. However, it was deemed to not be suitable. There is therefore no 
ongoing operational requirement for the Property.   
 

2  Supporting information  

 
2.1  The following options have been identified for the Property:  
 

1. Retain for a Council service; 
2. Rent to a Council partner or external tenant; or 
3. Dispose of the freehold. 

 
2.2  Option 1 (Retain for a Council service): all Council Directorates have confirmed there 
is no operational service need for the Property.  
 
2.3 Option 2 (Rent to an East Sussex County Council (ESCC) partner or external 
tenant): the Property is considered to be in reasonable condition and it is likely that it could be 
let to a third party, albeit a change of use may be required. Letting the property will generate 

Page 25

Agenda Item 5

https://democracy.eastsussex.gov.uk/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?AIId=35447
https://democracy.eastsussex.gov.uk/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?AIId=35447


an income for the Council, which will provide a vital revenue stream for the Council, helping to 
ease some of the projected deficit reported for the 2025/26 budget. Letting the property also 
supports the Council’s Strategic Asset Plan Strategic Asset Plan 2020 - 2025 | East Sussex 
County Council. 
 
2.4 Option 3 (Dispose of the Freehold): the Property is likely to be considered as a small 
development site, subject to gaining the necessary planning consents. While capital receipts 
are an important source of funding, the Property is adjacent to various landholdings owned by 
Lewes District Council. In view of plans for Local Government Reorganisation (LGR), it is 
considered more appropriate to retain the Property in the short-medium term from an Asset 
Management perspective. A future asset management view on this Property in relation to the 
surrounding landholdings can then be considered once the future structure of local government 
from 1 April 2028 is known 
   
2.5 Renting to an ESCC partner or external tenant (Option 2) is therefore considered to be 
the most appropriate strategy. If this option is agreed, the Property will be marketed by a local 
commercial agent. Any offers received will be considered based on the viability of the proposed 
operation, in addition to other factors such as the net income potential for the Council. If offers 
are made by community or voluntary organisations, they will be considered alongside 
companies submitting commercial bids, as well as any made by a Council partner. The Council 
shall ensure that any letting arrangement it enters into, secures the best consideration that can 
reasonably be obtained, as required by s.123 of the Local Government Act 1972. 
 
2.6 The Property is not listed as an Asset of Community Value under the Localism Act 
2011. 
 
2.7 In the event that an offer is accepted, but the transaction does not progress as 
expected, the Council would reserve the right to proceed with the next best offer, or to re-
market the Property (as appropriate). The timeframe for a transaction varies depending on a 
number of reasons. For example, the offer may be subject to planning approval. Expected 
timescales will be recorded at heads of terms stage.  
 
2.8 The Local Member has been consulted on the proposed strategy.  
 
3  Conclusion and reasons for recommendations   

3.1  The Council has no ongoing operational use for the Property. The Property is surplus 
to the Council’s requirements and the letting of it will reduce revenue liabilities relating to the 
management and holding costs of this surplus asset, as well as providing the Council with an 
income stream. 
 
3.2 The Lead Member for Resources and Climate Change is therefore recommended to 
declare the Property to be surplus to the Council’s requirements and approve the letting of it in 
accordance with s.123 of the Local Government Act 1972. 
 

ROS PARKER 
Chief Operating Officer 
 

Contact Officer: Rebecca Lewis 

Tel: 01273 335873 

Email: rebecca.lewis@eastsussxex.gov.uk 

 

LOCAL MEMBER 

Councillor Johnny Denis 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 

None   

Page 26

https://www.eastsussex.gov.uk/your-council/about/property/strategy/strategy
https://www.eastsussex.gov.uk/your-council/about/property/strategy/strategy
mailto:rebecca.lewis@eastsussxex.gov.uk


East Sussex
County Council
County Hall
St Annes Crescent
Lewes

Map Title: Phoenix Centre. Lewes

1:1,250Scale:
Date: Map No:

Author:
04/07/2025 1

LT

Brooks Road

BrooksRoad

North
Court

Mallin
g

Stree
t

Cliffe High
Street

Brooks
Road

Foundry Passage

CuilfailTunnel

Railway Lane

Brooks
Road

Cuilfail Tunnel

Malling Street

Thomas Street

Phoenix Causeway

Phoenix Causeway

Chapel Hill

Farncombe Road

Rusbridge Lane

Eastgate Wharf

Cliffe High Street

Bear Yard

High Street

South Street

Brooks Road

Cu
ilfa

il Tu
nnel

Ro
und

about

Brooks Road

Roundabout

English's Passage

Brooks Road

Railway Lane

Foundry Lane

North Court

Cuilfail

Malling Street

Malling Street

Morris Road

Southcliffe

Harveys Way

Cliffe High Street

Daveys Lane

Malling Street

´

Aerial Photography © Getmapping.com 2025. © East Sussex County Council 2025.
© Crown copyright and database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey 100019601.
You are permitted to use this data solely to enable you to respond to, or interact with,
the organisation that provided you with the data. You are not permitted to copy,
sub-licence, distribute or sell any of this data to third parties in any form.

Cities Revealed aerial photography © The GeoInformation Group 2012
© database right Landmark Information Group Ltd. All rights reserved 2025

0 20 40 60 8010
Meters

Page 27

Appendix 1



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 Decisions made by the Lead Cabinet Member on 8 July 2025
	4 Fair Funding Review 2.0 Consultation Response
	Appendix 1

	5 Phoenix Centre, Lewes - Options for next steps
	Appendix 1


